
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
AGENDA 

 
VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
Board of Supervisors Hearing Room, Hall of Administration 

800 South Victoria Avenue, Ventura, California 
9:00 A.M. Wednesday, July 21, 2004 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Commission Presentations and Announcements 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
5. Public Comment 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to speak on items not on 
the agenda. 

 
(The Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission encourages all interested 
parties to speak on any issue on this agenda in which they have an interest, or on 
any matter subject to LAFCO jurisdiction. It is the desire of LAFCO that its 
business be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. All speakers are 
requested to fill out a Speakers Card and submit it to the Clerk before the item is 
taken up for consideration. All speakers are requested to present their information 
to LAFCO as succinctly as possible with a five (5) minute time limit. Allowing an 
individual to speak more than five minutes is at the discretion of the Chair of the 
Commission.  Speakers are encouraged to refrain from restating previous 
testimony). 
 

 
6. Approval of Minutes of the Ventura LAFCO regular meeting held June 9, 

2004. 
 

 

1



VENTURA LAFCO AGENDA 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 3 
  

CONSENT ITEMS 
 

Professional Service Agreement for Database Services - Donna Goris 
Approve a Professional Service Agreement for Database Services with Donna 
Goris in an amount not to exceed $10,000 
 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
 

Sphere of Influence Review and Update:  LAFCO 04-11S  - Ojai Valley 
Sanitary District 
Review and update the sphere of influence for the Ojai Valley Sanitary District. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Continue to September 15, 2004  

 
9. Revisions to LAFCO Fee Schedule 
 Review and Update revisions to the current LAFCO fee schedule. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

10. Nominations to CALAFCO Executive Board 
Authorize the Chair to submit nominations to the CALAFCO Executive Board, as 
approved by the Commission. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize Chair to submit 

nominations 
  

11. Conflict of Interest Code Amendment 
Review and Amend the Conflict of Interest Code  
 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval 
 
 
Revisions to Municipal Service Review and sphere of Influence Update Work 
Plan 
Review and update the Municipal Service Review Work Plan 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval 
 

2



VENTURA LAFCO AGENDA 
July 21, 2004 

Page 3 of 3 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
12. Commissioner Term Expirations 

Information about the selection process to replace members whose terms are 
expiring. 
 
 
CALAFCO Awards 2004 
Information calling for nominations for CALAFCO awards. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

A. Pending Legislation – Update 
B. CALAFCO Board meets Friday July 23 in Ventura 
C. CALAFCO Annual Conference – Anaheim 
D. Next LAFCO meeting is September 15, 2004  
 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the LAFCO office 
(805) 654-2576.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable 
LAFCO to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

3



 

4



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
 

 
ACTION MINUTES 

VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, June 9, 2004 

 
9:00 A.M. 
 
1. Call To Order 
          CHAIR BARAJAS CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER ZARAGOZA LED THE PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE. 

 
3. Roll Call 

THE CLERK CALLED THE ROLL.  PRESENT WERE: 
CHAIR BARAJAS 
COMMISSIONER CUNNINGHAM 
COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON 
COMMISSIONER PARKS (Arrived at 9:08) 
ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS ZARAGOZA 
ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER GRANDSEN 
ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER HESS 
DUE TO THE ABSENCE OF COMMISSIONER CURTIS, ALTERNATE 
COMMISSIONER GRANDSEN SERVED AS A SPECIAL DISTRICT 
REPRESENTATIVE.  DUE TO THE ABSENCE OF COMMISSIONER WAUNCH, 
ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER ZARAGOZA SERVED AS A CITY 
REPRESENTATIVE.  
   

4. Commission Presentations and Announcements 
THERE WERE NO PRESENTATIONS. 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

5. Public Comment - This is an opportunity for members of the public to speak on 
items not on the agenda. 
THERE WERE NO PUBLIC SPEAKERS 

5



VENTURA LAFCO MINUTES 
June 9, 2004 
Page 2 of 3 

 
6. Approval of Action Minutes for the Meeting of the Ventura LAFCO held May 19, 

2004. 
MOTION FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER CUNNINGHAM, SECONDED 
BY COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON. COMMISSIONER PARKS WAS ABSENT 
FOR THE VOTE   
UPON A VOICE VOTE – 
APPROVED 5/0 

  
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
7. Amend No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement for Municipal Service Reviews – 

Joyce Crosthwaite 
MOTION FOR APPROVAL MADE BY ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER 
ZARAGOZA, SECONDED BY ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER GRANDSEN. 
COMMISSIONER PARKS WAS ABSENT FOR THE VOTE 
UPON A VOICE VOTE- 
APPROVED 5/0 
 

REMOVED FROM CONSENT 
 
8. Fee Waiver Request – LAFCO 04-10 Ventura County Regional Open Space 

District Formation 
EVERETT MILLAIS PRESENTED THE STAFF REPORT. 
THE FOLLOWING PERSONS SPOKE IN OPPOSITION TO THE FEE WAIVER 
REQUEST: JOHN JOHNSON, GENERAL MANAGER, CASITAS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON TO SUPPORT WAIVER OF 
LAFCO APPLICATION FEE BUT COLLECT ACTUAL COSTS FOR STAFF 
TIME IF INITIATIVE PASSES ELECTION IN NOVEMBER, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER CUNNINGHAM. UPON A ROLL CALL VOTE: 
APPROVED 6/0 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 

9. LAFCO 04-10 Ventura County Regional Open Space District Formation 
 EVERETT MILLAIS PRESENTED THE STAFF REPORT. CHAIR BARAJAS 

OPENED THE PUBLIC HEARING.  THE FOLLOWING PERSONS SPOKE: 
LARRY ROSE, COMMUNITY OPEN SPACE ALLIANCE. WITH NO OTHER 
SPEAKERS, CHAIR BARAJAS CLOSED THE PUBLIC HEARING. MOTION 
FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER PARKS 

 UPON A VOICE VOTE 
APPROVED 6/0 

 

6



VENTURA LAFCO MINUTES 
June 9, 2004 

Page 3 of 3 

 
10. LAFCO Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-2005 

EVERETT MILLAIS PRESENTED THE STAFF REPORT. CHAIR BARAJAS 
OPENED THE PUBLIC HEARING.  WITH NO ONE REQUESTING TO SPEAK, 
CHAIR BARAJAS CLOSED THE PUBLIC HEARING. MOTION FOR 
APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER GRANDSEN, SECONDED BY ALTERNATE 
COMMISSIONER ZARAGOZA 
UPON A VOICE VOTE 
APPROVED 6/0 

 
11. Sphere of Influence Update – Ojai Valley Sanitary District 

MOTION TO CONTINUE TO JULY 21, 2004 MADE BY COMMISSIONER 
PARKS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON. 
UPON A VOICE VOTE 
APPROVED 6/0 

 
12. Review and Update LAFCO Fee Schedule 

MOTION TO CONTINUE TO JULY 21, 2004 MADE BY COMMISSIONER 
RICHARDSON, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER PARKS 
UPON A VOICE VOTE 
APPROVED 6/0 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
13. LAFCO 04-02 Camarillo Sanitary District Annexation – Dunkle (Parcels A-F) 

EVERETT MILLAIS PRESENTED THE STAFF REPORT.  THERE WERE NO 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS. MOTION FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER 
RICHARDSON, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER CUNNINGHAM.  UPON A 
VOICE VOTE- 
APPROVED 6/0 
 
Impartial Ballot Analysis – Ventura County Regional Open Space District 
EVERETT MILLAIS PRESENTED THE STAFF REPORT.  THERE WERE NO 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS. MOTION FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER PARKS, 
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARDSON.  UPON A VOICE VOTE- 
APPROVED 6/0 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
EVERETT MILLAIS REPORTED ON THE FOLLOWING:  STATUS OF AB 2306, 
THE NEXT LAFCO MEETING  WEDNESDAY JULY 21, THE CALAFCO BOARD 
MEETING IN VENTURA  JULY 23RD AND THE UPCOMING CALAFCO 
ANNUAL CONFERENCE SEPTEMBER 8-10 IN ANAHEIM. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
CHAIR BARAJAS ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 10:23 A.M. 

7



 

8



 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: July 21, 2004 
CONSENT 

 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement for Database Services – Donna Goris 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a Professional Services Agreement for Database Services with Donna Goris in 
an amount not to exceed $10,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The data gathered from the first phase of the municipal service review process was 
entered into a large Microsoft Access database that was delivered to LAFCO at the 
completion of the water and wastewater service reviews. The format of this data base 
was difficult to use for anyone without extensive experience with Mircrosoft Access and, 
as preparation for the second phase of municipal service review work began, it was 
determined that the existing database could not readily be expanded. These facts, plus 
the fact that LAFCO staff will be responsible for the on-going maintenance of the 
database, resulted in a conclusion that further database consulting services were 
necessary to update the existing database, allow it to be easily expanded for future 
entries and to make it more “user friendly” overall. 
 
Donna Goris is a local Microsoft Access database expert. She teaches database 
development and other database classes at Ventura College and for the last several 
years has taught both beginning and advanced Microsoft Access database classes for 
Ventura County employees through an agreement with the County of Ventura. She also 
does limited database consulting as an individual. 

9



 
Staff Report  
Professional Services Agreement with Donna Goris 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

LAFCO has delegated authority to the Executive Officer to enter into contracts and 
agreements for $5,000 or less, provided sufficient funds are contained in the LAFCO 
budget (Commissioner’s Handbook Section 2.6.4). Once the need to revise and update 
the municipal service review database was recognized, and to provide for further use of 
the database for subsequent phases of the service review process, I authorized Donna 
Goris to commence work up to the $5,000 limit allowed. Much of the first phase of work 
described in the scope of services in the attached, recommended agreement has been 
done based on this authorization, although no invoices have been received or paid to 
date. 
 
It is apparent that to fully complete the work described in the attached agreement, the 
total cost will exceed the $5,000 administrative limit. In accordance with the 
Commission’s policies it is recommended that the Commission approve the attached 
agreement providing for all work to be done for a not to exceed amount of $10,000. There 
are sufficient funds for this purpose in the Commission’s 2004-05 Budget for professional 
services. 
 
Maintaining the municipal service review information in a database is one of the key, and 
somewhat unique, elements of the Ventura LAFCO’s service review process. This was 
done to develop a base of data about municipal services that could be formatted in a 
variety of ways and that could be readily updated in the future for subsequent service 
reviews. Staff is extremely pleased with the work that Ms Goris has done to date. The 
result of her work will be a greatly enhance database structure and, importantly, end 
users will not need to be Microsoft Access database experts to enter data, make queries 
or generate reports. While this work will not result in the ability to allow the service review 
database to be used by the general public via a web site, the structure and format will 
provide for it to be adapted for such a possible use in the future. 

10



 
 
 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR DATABASE SERVICES 

 
 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
This agreement is entered into this 21st day of July 2004, by and between the Ventura Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) and Donna Goris, an individual, ("Contractor"). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, LAFCO has the authority to enter into agreements for services, personnel and facilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the LAFCO Executive Officer has the delegated authority to enter into agreements for $5,000 
or less; and 
 
WHEREAS, contractor is a database expert, who teaches classes in database development and 
management and who provides database consulting services; and 
 
WHEREAS, LAFCO has a need to revise and update its Microsoft Access database containing 
information relating to municipal service reviews; and 
 
WHEREAS, the LAFCO Executive Officer has authorized Contractor to perform database services for 
LAFCO within the limits of his delegated authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the necessary database services relating to municipal service reviews will exceed $5,000; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable that Contractor be engaged by LAFCO to be able to perform 
the database services hereinafter described: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by the parties as follows: 
 
1.  SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 
 

In consideration of the payments hereinafter set forth, Contractor will perform services for LAFCO 
in accordance with the terms, conditions and specifications set forth herein and in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

 
2. PAYMENTS 
 

In consideration of the services rendered in accordance with all terms, conditions and 
specifications set forth herein and in Exhibit A, LAFCO will make payment to Contractor in the 
manner specified in Exhibit A.   

 
3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

No relationship of employer and employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that 
Contractor is an independent contractor, and neither Contractor nor any of the persons 
performing services for Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, whether said person be member, 

11



Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
Professional Services Agreement for Database Services 

 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 6 

partner, employee, subcontractor, or otherwise, will have any claim under this Agreement or 
otherwise against LAFCO for sick leave, vacation pay, retirement benefits, social security, 
workers' compensation, disability, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any 
kind. 

 
It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that, except as provided in this 
Agreement, Contractor in the performance of her obligation hereunder is subject to the control or 
direction of LAFCO merely as to the result to be accomplished by the services hereunder agreed 
to be rendered and performed and not as to the means and methods for accomplishing the 
results. 

 
If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third persons are employed by Contractor, such 
persons will be entirely and exclusively under direction, supervision and control of Contractor.  All 
terms of employment, including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and 
discharging or any other terms of employment or requirements of law, will be determined by 
Contractor, and LAFCO will have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of such 
employment, except as provided in this contract. 

 
The Contractor will comply with all of the provisions of the Worker’s Compensation Insurance and 
Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the 
California Labor Code and all amendments, thereto; and all similar State and Federal acts or 
laws applicable; and will indemnify and hold harmless the Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and 
judgments of every nature and description, including attorney’s fees and costs, presented, 
brought or recovered against the Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission, for or on 
account of any liability under any of said Acts which may be incurred by reasons of any work to 
be performed under this Agreement. 

 
4. NON-ASSIGNABILITY 
 

Contractor will not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof, to a third party without the prior 
written consent of LAFCO, and any attempted assignment without such prior written consent will 
be null and void and will be cause, at LAFCO’s sole and absolute discretion, for immediate 
termination of this Agreement. 
 

5. TERM 
 

This Agreement will be in effect from July 21, 2004 through December 31, 2004, subject to all the 
terms and conditions set forth herein. Time is of the essence in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
6. TERMINATION 
 

LAFCO may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason by providing 10 days written 
notice to Contractor, and Contractor may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason by 
providing 10 days written notice to LAFCO. In the event of termination under this paragraph, 
Contractor will be paid for all work provided to the date of termination, as long as such work 
meets the terms and conditions of this contract. On completion or termination of this contract, 
LAFCO will be entitled to immediate possession of and Contractor will furnish on request, all files, 
correspondence and other pertinent data gathered or computed by Contractor for this particular 
Agreement prior to any termination. Contractor may retain copies of files and documents for 
Contractor's files. Contractor hereby expressly waives any and all claims for damages or 
compensation arising under this Contract except as set forth in this paragraph in the event of 
such termination. 

12



Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
Professional Services Agreement for Database Services 

 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 6 

7. INDEMNIFICATION, HOLD HARMLESS AND WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
 

All activities and/or work covered by this contract will be at the risk of Contractor alone.  
Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless the Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission, including all of its officers, employees, agents and volunteers, against any and all 
claims, lawsuits, judgments, debts, demands and liability, whether against Contractor, LAFCO or 
others, including without limitation, those arising from injuries or death of persons and/or for 
damages to property, arising directly or indirectly out of the obligations herein described or 
undertaken or out of operations conducted or subsidized in whole or in part by Contractor, save 
and except claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or wrongdoing and/or sole 
willful misconduct of LAFCO. Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against LAFCO 
for losses arising directly or indirectly from the activities and/or work covered by this contract. 

 
8. INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
 

A) Contractor, at her sole cost and expense, will obtain and maintain in full force during the term 
of this contract Personal Automobile Liability coverage in the minimum amount of $15,000 
combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury and property damage each occurrence and $30,000 
aggregate, and $5,000 property damage. 

 
B) Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the Ventura Local Agency 

Formation Commission, its Officers, Employees, Agents and Volunteers for losses arising 
from work performed by Contractor under the terms of this contract. 

 
C) Contractor agrees to provide LAFCO with Certificates of Insurance for all required coverage 

on or before the effective date of this agreement. Failure to provide these documents will be 
grounds for immediate termination or suspension of this contract. 

 
9.  INVESTIGATION AND RESEARCH 
 

Contractor by investigation and research has acquired reasonable knowledge of all conditions 
affecting the work to be done and labor and material needed, and the execution of this 
Agreement is to be based upon such investigation and research, and not upon any 
representation made by LAFCO or any of its officers, agents or employees, except as provided 
herein. 

 
10. ADDENDA 
 

LAFCO may from time to time require changes in the scope of the services required hereunder.  
Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of Contractor's compensation 
which are mutually agreed upon by and between LAFCO and Contractor will be effective when 
incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement. 

 
11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

Contractor covenants that Contractor presently has no interest, including, but not limited to, other 
projects or independent contracts, and will not acquire any such interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be 
performed under this Agreement. Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this 
Contract no person having such interest will be employed or retained by Contractor under this 
Agreement. 
 

 
 

13



Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
Professional Services Agreement for Database Services 

 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 6 

12. NOTICES 
 

All notices required under this Contract will be made in writing and addressed or delivered as 
follows: 

 
 TO LAFCO:  Ventura LAFCO 
    800 South Victoria Avenue 
    Ventura, CA  93009-1850 
 
 TO CONTRACTOR: Donna Goris 
    866 S. Rice Road 
    Ojai, CA 93023 
 

Either party may, by giving written notice in accordance with this paragraph, change the names 
or addresses of the persons of departments designated for receipt of future notices. When 
addressed in accordance with this paragraph and deposited in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid, notices will be deemed given on the third day following such deposit in the United States 
mail.  In all other instances, notices will be deemed given at the time of actual delivery.  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Contract. 
 
 
 
 
LAFCO   CONTRACTOR 
 
by:_________________________________ by:______________________________ 

 Authorized Signature Authorized Signature 
 

_________________________________  ______________________________ 
Printed Name  Printed Name 
Chair, Ventura Local Agency 
Formation Commission       

     Title 
 
 
 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Date   Date 

 
    ______________________________ 
    Tax Identification # 
 

14



Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
Professional Services Agreement for Database Services 

 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 6 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Scope of Work 
 
Phase 1: 

1. System Development Analysis 
a. Study & analyze the requirements -Interview 

i. How is information accumulated? 
ii. Who uses the information? 
iii. Is any information currently collected obsolete? 

b. Build & review models with client to verify flow 
 

2. Design & Build Tables 
a. Entity Relationship Model -diagram of table relationships 

i. Document information for 'the organization in a clear, precise format 
ii. Provide a clear picture of the scope of the information, requirement 
iii. Provide an easily understood pictorial map for the database design 

b. Provide an effective framework for integrating new data requirements 
 

3. Integration of Existing Data 
a. Append Existing Data into normalized structure 
b. Adjustment of Data Entry Forms 
c. Adjustment of Reports 
 

4. Installation of LAFCO Database 
a. End-User Interface 
b. End-User Documentation 
c. End-User Training 

 
Phase 2:  Integration of Future Services 

1. Study & analyze the requirements –Interviews 
 
2. Clarify standards for new agencies and services 

a. Parks, recreation, cemetery, streets & highways, police, etc.., how will information differ from 
water & wastewater reports? 

b. How is information accumulated? 
c. Who uses the information? 
 

3. Design & Build Tables 
 
4. Design & Build Forms and Reports 
 
5. Installation of LAFCO Database Updates 

a. End-User Interface  
b. End-User Documentation  
c. End-User Training 

 
 
Compensation Schedule 
 

1. Billing 
Within ten (10) days after the end of each calendar month in which services are performed or 
expenses are incurred under this Agreement, Contractor will submit an invoice to LAFCO. The 
invoice submitted shall reference this Agreement and show the hours worked by each person 

15



Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
Professional Services Agreement for Database Services 

 
 

 
 

Page 6 of 6 

who performed services during the billing period, the hourly rate of pay for each person who 
performed services, the dates on which the services were performed, a description of the 
services performed, actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of the services, 
and such other information as the LAFCO Executive Officer may reasonably require. 

 
2. Time of Payment 

LAFCO will make payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days after submittal of Contractor’s 
invoice and approval. 
 

3. Hourly Rate: 
Contractor shall be compensated at a maximum rate of $100 per hour. 
 

4. Maximum Compensation: 
Contractor will complete all the work and tasks described herein for a total amount of 
compensation that does not exceed $10,000, which includes all out-of-pocket expenses, travel 
and any other expenses. 

 

16



 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Noel Klebaum 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: June 9, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Sphere of Influence Review and Update: LAFCO 04-11S 

Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

A. As lead agency, determine that the sphere of influence update for Ojai Valley 
Sanitary District is exempt pursuant to Section 15301(b) of the CEQA 
Guidelines 

B. Adopt the attached resolution (LAFCO 04-11S) making determinations and 
updating the sphere of influence for the Ojai Valley Sanitary District. 

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For each city and special district LAFCO must determine and adopt a sphere of influence 
and, “…review and update, as necessary, the adopted sphere not less than once every 
five years.” (CA Government Code §56430(f)). In order to prepare and update spheres of 
influence LAFCO must conduct municipal service reviews. During 2003 the Commission 
conducted water and wastewater service reviews for the 36 agencies (cities and special 
districts) in the County that provide some form of water and/or wastewater services. 
 
Based on the water and wastewater service review report and follow-up review and 
discussion with the Board and staff of the Ojai Valley Sanitary District, and the staff of the 
City of Ojai, a sphere of influence update is recommended for the Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District. The Ojai Valley Sanitary District is an independent special district that provides 
wastewater collection and treatment services to the Ojai Valley north of the City of 
Ventura. Included in the existing service area are the City of Ojai and the unincorporated 

17



 
 
Staff Report 
Sphere of Influence Review and Update (LAFCO 04-011S) 
Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
June 9, 2004 
Page 2 of 3 

areas of Meiners Oaks, Oak View, Casitas Springs and the North Ventura Avenue area in 
the City of Ventura’s sphere of influence. The District was formed in 1985 as a result of 
the consolidation of the Ventura Avenue, Oak View, and Meiners Oaks Sanitary Districts, 
and the Sanitation Department of the City of Ojai. These predecessor agencies were 
formed in the early 1960’s in conjunction with construction of the Oak View treatment 
plant.  
 
The municipal service review for the Ojai Valley Sanitary District noted that when the 
reorganization occurred in 1985 to form the current District there was controversy about 
the new District’s service area. As a result, the final agency and sphere of influence 
boundaries were not, and are not today, consistent with the actual service area of the 
District. In fact, the boundaries and sphere of influence of the Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
are the most out of align with the agency’s basic service area of any public agency in 
Ventura County. There are areas in the District boundaries that are receiving service that 
are not within the District’s sphere of influence, there are areas being served by the 
District that are not within the District’s boundaries or the sphere, there are areas not in 
the District’s boundary, but within the sphere, that are receiving service, and there are 
areas in the District boundaries, not within the sphere, that are not receiving any service, 
but paid a proportionate share for infrastructure improvements for a predecessor agency. 
 
The municipal service review report identified each of the existing boundary anomalies of 
the District as a special study area and suggested a possible revised sphere of influence. 
The areas of focus were referred to in the municipal service review report as the Creek 
Road area, the Western Area and Live Oaks Acres, and the Eastern Area (Ojai Avenue 
to St. Joseph Retirement Center and Grand Avenue to Orange Road). For this sphere of 
influence update each of these areas were reviewed in detail with the District staff 
together with other areas where the District has service lines and areas in the District’s 
boundaries that are not now in the sphere of influence. 
 
The recommended sphere of influence update provides for all areas within the District 
boundaries and all areas served by the District, or easily served by existing facilities, to 
be within the District’s sphere. In addition, all areas now within the District’s sphere of 
influence would remain in the recommended sphere, except for the area northwest of 
Rancho Matilija that has been purchased by the Ojai Valley Land Conservancy for open 
space purposes. The recommended sphere of influence boundary was presented to and 
accepted by the District’s staff and Board and the City of Ojai staff. 
 
For CEQA purposes, it is recommended that the Commission as lead agency find the 
Ojai Valley Sanitary District sphere of influence update to be Categorically Exempt under 
Section 15301(b) (Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. As noted, the sphere of 
influence update provides for the sphere boundary to reflect the District boundaries and 

18



 
 

Staff Report 
Sphere of Influence Review and Update (LAFCO 04-011S) 

Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
June 9, 2004 

Page 3 of 3 

the District’s existing service area. There will be no land use changes or new service 
areas resulting from the sphere of influence update. 
 
When determining an agency’s sphere of influence Government Code Section 56425(d) 
requires the Commission to consider and prepare written statements of its determinations 
with respect to each of the following: 

(1) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and 
open-space lands. – The sphere of influence update for the Ojai Valley 
Sanitary District is to provide for all areas within the District boundaries, all 
areas now being served and all areas that can easily be served by existing 
District facilities to be within the District’s sphere of influence. The update 
does not affect the present or planned uses in the area, including agricultural 
and open space lands, and no change in land use or development will result 
from the sphere of influence update. 

(2) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 
– The sphere of influence update will not affect the present or probable need 
for public facilities and services in the area. The sphere of influence update 
provides for the District’s sphere to coincide with the existing boundaries and 
the existing service area of the District. 

(3) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that 
the agency provides or is authorized to provide. – The sphere of influence 
update will not affect the present capacity or adequacy of public facilities and 
services in the area. The District provides wastewater collection and 
treatment services and the sphere of influence update provides for the 
District’s sphere to coincide with the existing boundaries and service area of 
the District. 

(4) The existence of any social or economic community of interest in the area if 
the commission determines that they are relevant to the agency. – The Ojai 
Valley Sanitary District provides wastewater collection and treatment 
services to the Ojai Valley north of the City of Ventura. This area constitutes 
both a social and economic community of interest. The District is the only 
agency providing these services to this area and the services provided are 
for the benefit of the public health and welfare of the residents of the area. 

 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
LAFCO Resolution 04-011S - Ojai Valley Sanitary District Sphere of Influence Update 

19



 

20



 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: July 21, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Revisions to LAFCO Fee Schedule 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the attached resolution establishing a revised LAFCO fee schedule to be effective 
August 1, 2004. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The current LAFCO fee schedule has been in place for two years and has generally 
functioned well. Most fees consist of a non-refundable “administrative fee” and a deposit 
amount. Staff charges actual time and processing costs to the deposit portion of the fee. 
If staff time and/or actual costs for processing exceed the amount of the initial deposit, 
more funds are collected prior to an action being finalized. Any funds from the deposit 
portion of the fees that remain after an action is fully completed are refunded to the 
applicant. 
 
The Commission’s policies (Commissioner’s Handbook Section 2.3.3.1) provide for an 
annual review of the fee schedule as a part of the budget process. While no adjustments 
were made in 2003, this year as a part of the proposed budget it was recommended that 
the Commission formally review the fee schedule and make revisions as necessary. A 
notice of hearing for this purpose was first published for the June 9 meeting, but due to 
staff time limitations the hearing was continued to July 21. 
 
Attached is a copy of the current fee schedule with recommended changes highlighted in 
legislative format (additions underlined, deletions crossed out). Only modest changes are 

21



 
 
Staff Report 
Revisions to LAFCO Fee Schedule 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

recommended to the base fee schedule. These changes are proposed to try to keep 
base fees reasonable, minimize time required to track deposit amounts and to still 
provide for charging for actual staff time. 
 
The major change recommended is to increase the LAFCO staff composite rate (a rate 
that includes salaries and partial operation/administrative overhead) from $90 per hour to 
$105 per hour. During the last two years LAFCO’s administrative and general overhead 
costs have increased, primarily as a result in increases charged by the County. The 
increase recommended to the LAFCO composite rate fee will assist in offsetting these 
cost increases. 
 
In addition to the LAFCO staff composite rate increase, it is also recommended that the 
recoverable cost for County Counsel services be increase from $110 per hour to $139 
per hour. This is the amount recently established by the Board of Supervisors for County 
Counsel services as a part of the County’s budget process and will enable LAFCO to 
pass through actual costs for LAFCO case work. 
 
Both the existing fee schedule and the proposed changes offset only a portion of 
LAFCO’s expenses. The fee schedule relates only to applications for various types of 
actions filed with LAFCO. It does not apply to other types of LAFCO mandated functions 
such as municipal service reviews or sphere of influence updates. Currently, LAFCO fees 
offset only approximately 10 to 12% of net expenses overall. While there could be 
justification for raising fees even more, the reality is that most of LAFCO staff time is now 
spent on mandated work not subject to application fees and higher fees would be a 
greater burden for applicants processing boundary changes for only one lot (e.g. to 
provide for connection to a sanitary sewer). 
 
The recommended fee changes have been reviewed by the County Auditor-Controller’s 
staff using the same principles applied to County agencies, and to ensure that the fees 
charged don’t exceed the aggregate costs of providing services. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 

• Existing Fees Schedule with changes noted in “legislative format” (additions 
underlined; deletions lined through) 

• Resolution adopting a new fee schedule 
 
 

22



 
 

Ventura LAFCO Fee Schedule – Effective July 1, 2002August 1, 2004                                        
Page 1 of 2 
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
(Effective on July 1, 2002 August 1, 2004) 

 
Fees and deposits are charged and accounted for as described in the Ventura LAFCO Fee and Billing Policies. Each application or petition to LAFCO 
must be accompanied by payment of the Administrative Fee and the Initial Deposit set forth below. All LAFCO staff time and legal counsel time spent 
on the proposal shall be billed to the applicant or petitioner at the hourly rates set forth below, and shall be paid from the deposit.  If the hourly 
charges exceed the amount of the deposit, the applicant or petitioner shall pay excess within 15 days of receipt of a statement from LAFCO.  Failure 
to pay may be cause for denial of the application/petition, and no proceeding or proposal shall be completed until all fees due have been paid in full. 

 
TYPE OF ACTION 

Administrative Fee 
(Non Refundable) 

Deposit Required 
(Initial) 

Total initial 
Payment 

Proposals for Change of Organization or 
Reorganization that do NOT require 
conducting authority protest proceedings (area 
uninhabited and all owners and subject 
agencies consent to the proposal) 

$1,600 $1,800 $3,400 

Proposals for Change of Organization or 
Reorganization that require conducting 
authority protest proceedings (area is inhabited 
and/or all owners and/or subject agencies do 
not consent to the proposal) 

$1,600 $3,600 $5,200 

Sphere of Influence Amendments - 
filed separately $1,600 $3,600 $5,200 

Sphere of Influence Amendments - 
filed in conjunction with a Change of 
Organization or Reorganization 

$1,600 $900 $2,500 

Out of Agency Service Agreements – 
Commission Action Required $1,600 $1,800 $3,400 

Out of Agency Service Agreements –
Administrative 0 $450 $900 $900$450 

Special District Formation $1600 $5400 $7,000 
Special District – 
Consolidation, Merger, Dissolution or 
Formation of a Subsidiary District 

$1,600 $4,500 $6,100 

Expansion of Special District Powers $1,600 $1,800 $3,400 
Extension of Time Request to Complete 
Proceedings $1,600 $900 $2,500 

Reconsideration Request $1,600 $900 $2,500 

Fee Waiver or Reduction of Fee Request 0 $600 $900 $900 $600 
Commission Study Session or Workshop (Per 
Hr, 3 hour minimum plus additional actual time) 

$1,600 $315 $900 $2,500$315 

Pre-application Review and Meetings (in 
excess of 3 hoursPer Hr, 3 hour minimum plus 
additional actual time-due at time of 
scheduling) 

0 $315 $900 $900$315 

23



 

Ventura LAFCO Fee Schedule – Effective July 1, 2002August 1, 2004                                        
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

TYPE OF ACTION 
Administrative Fee 
(Non Refundable) 

Deposit Required 
(Initial) 

Total initial 
Payment 

Reproductions and Copies First page  .50, Additional pages  .50 
Audio Tape Duplication $14.00 each 

 
 

NON-LAFCO FEES 
Fees & Charges Related to LAFCO Actions 

 
 

FEES APPLICANT/PETITIONER SHALL PAY: 

Mapping fees 

Payable to the County Surveyor’s Section of 
the Ventura County Public Works Agency per 
the applicable County Surveyor’s Fee 
Schedule  

State Board of Equalization fees 

For changes of organization and 
reorganization; payable to the State Board of 
Equalization in accordance with their latest 
fee schedule; collected by LAFCO prior to 
County and State filing of an action 

Publication costs Costs for publishing notices in the newspaper 
will be charged at actual costs 

Consultant costs 

Costs for any consultants hired by LAFCO 
(e.g. environmental consultants, fiscal review 
consultants, etc.) will be charged at actual 
costs 

State Department of Fish and Game fees 

Payable to the State Department of Fish and 
Game; collected, as necessary, by LAFCO 
prior to filing environmental notices of 
determination 

Charges by County Assessor, County Clerk 
and Recorder or other County agencies for 
verifying ownership information, registered 
voter information, filing notices, recording 
documents, etc. 

Actual cost 

State Controller’s costs 

Costs by the State Controller’s Office for 
fiscal reviews; payable to the State Controller 
in accordance with their latest fee schedule; 
collected by LAFCO prior to submittal to the 
State Controller. 

Special legal counsel and any legal defense 
costs 

Actual costs 

 
 

LAFCO TIME BILLING RATES 
 

LAFCO staff composite rate $90$105/hour 
LAFCO legal counsel $110 $139/hour 

24



RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION UPDATING AND REVISING 

THE LAFCO FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 

 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 56383 allows for a Local 
Agency Formation Commission to establish a schedule of fees for the costs of 
proceedings; and 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has adopted a policy to review its fee schedule 
annually as a part of the budget adoption process; and 
 WHEREAS, as a part of the budget preparation and adoption process for Fiscal 
Year 2004-2005 the Commission determined that a review of its Fee Schedule should 
occur; and 
 WHEREAS, the Commission determines that fees should be based on actual 
processing costs plus the costs of necessary indirect and administrative functions; and 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Officer gave notice of this matter in the manner 
required by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission complied with the requirements of Government 
Code Section 66016, and 

WHEREAS, the Commission discussed and considered all oral and written 
testimony for and against this matter including, but not limited to, the Executive Officer’s 
Staff Report and recommendation; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission duly considered the matter on July 21, 2004; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 
Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission as follows: 
 

(1) The fee schedule set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto is hereby adopted, 
to become effective on August 1, 2004. 

(2) The fees set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto do not exceed the 
estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees 
are charged, and are necessary to pay the costs of operation of the 
Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission. 

(3) The Executive Officer is directed to notify all cities and special districts in 
Ventura County of this action by August 1, 2004. 

 

 

25



 
 
Fee Update Resolution 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

This resolution was passed and adopted on July 21, 2004. 
 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAINS:  
 
 
 
 
Dated: ______________  ___________________________________________ 
  Chair, Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
  
 
 
 

26



 
 

Ventura LAFCO Fee Schedule – Effective August 1, 2004                                      Page 1 of 2 
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
(Effective on August 1, 2004) 

 
Fees and deposits are charged and accounted for as described in the Ventura LAFCO Fee and Billing Policies. Each application or petition to LAFCO 
must be accompanied by payment of the Administrative Fee and the Initial Deposit set forth below. All LAFCO staff time and legal counsel time spent 
on the proposal shall be billed to the applicant or petitioner at the hourly rates set forth below, and shall be paid from the deposit.  If the hourly 
charges exceed the amount of the deposit, the applicant or petitioner shall pay excess within 15 days of receipt of a statement from LAFCO.  Failure 
to pay may be cause for denial of the application/petition, and no proceeding or proposal shall be completed until all fees due have been paid in full. 

 
TYPE OF ACTION 

Administrative Fee 
(Non Refundable) 

Deposit Required 
(Initial) 

Total initial 
Payment 

Proposals for Change of Organization or 
Reorganization that do NOT require 
conducting authority protest proceedings (area 
uninhabited and all owners and subject 
agencies consent to the proposal) 

$1,600 $1,800 $3,400 

Proposals for Change of Organization or 
Reorganization that require conducting 
authority protest proceedings (area is inhabited 
and/or all owners and/or subject agencies do 
not consent to the proposal) 

$1,600 $3,600 $5,200 

Sphere of Influence Amendments - 
filed separately $1,600 $3,600 $5,200 

Sphere of Influence Amendments - 
filed in conjunction with a Change of 
Organization or Reorganization 

$1,600 $900 $2,500 

Out of Agency Service Agreements – 
Commission Action Required $1,600 $1,800 $3,400 

Out of Agency Service Agreements –
Administrative  $450  $450 

Special District Formation $1600 $5400 $7,000 
Special District – 
Consolidation, Merger, Dissolution or 
Formation of a Subsidiary District 

$1,600 $4,500 $6,100 

Expansion of Special District Powers $1,600 $1,800 $3,400 
Extension of Time Request to Complete 
Proceedings $1,600 $900 $2,500 

Reconsideration Request $1,600 $900 $2,500 

Fee Waiver or Reduction of Fee Request  $600   $600 
Commission Study Session or Workshop (Per 
Hr, 3 hour minimum plus additional actual time) 

 $315  $315 

Pre-application Review and Meetings (Per Hr, 
3 hour minimum plus additional actual time- 
due at time of scheduling) 

 $315  $315 

Reproductions and Copies First page  .50, Additional pages  .50 
Audio Tape Duplication $14.00 each 

27



 

Ventura LAFCO Fee Schedule – Effective August 1, 2004                                      Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 
 

NON-LAFCO FEES 
Fees & Charges Related to LAFCO Actions 

 
 

FEES APPLICANT/PETITIONER SHALL PAY: 

Mapping fees 

Payable to the County Surveyor’s Section of 
the Ventura County Public Works Agency per 
the applicable County Surveyor’s Fee 
Schedule  

State Board of Equalization fees 

For changes of organization and 
reorganization; payable to the State Board of 
Equalization in accordance with their latest 
fee schedule; collected by LAFCO prior to 
County and State filing of an action 

Publication costs Costs for publishing notices in the newspaper 
will be charged at actual costs 

Consultant costs 

Costs for any consultants hired by LAFCO 
(e.g. environmental consultants, fiscal review 
consultants, etc.) will be charged at actual 
costs 

State Department of Fish and Game fees 

Payable to the State Department of Fish and 
Game; collected, as necessary, by LAFCO 
prior to filing environmental notices of 
determination 

Charges by County Assessor, County Clerk 
and Recorder or other County agencies for 
verifying ownership information, registered 
voter information, filing notices, recording 
documents, etc. 

Actual cost 

State Controller’s costs 

Costs by the State Controller’s Office for 
fiscal reviews; payable to the State Controller 
in accordance with their latest fee schedule; 
collected by LAFCO prior to submittal to the 
State Controller. 

Special legal counsel and any legal defense 
costs 

Actual costs 

 
 

LAFCO TIME BILLING RATES 
 

LAFCO staff composite rate $105/hour 
LAFCO legal counsel  $139/hour 
 

28



 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: July 21, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Nominations to CALAFCO Executive Board 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the Chair to submit nominations to the CALAFCO Executive Board, as 
approved by the Commission. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year at the annual CALAFCO conference elections are held for the CALAFCO 
Executive Board based on nominations received from individual LAFCOs. In order for the 
Commission to participate in the nomination process, nominations are due in to 
CALAFCO by August 9. 
 
Members of the CALAFCO Board must be members of a local LAFCO at all times. 
CALAFCO Executive Board Member terms are for two years. The Commission must 
approve each of its nominations to the Executive Board, and the Chair of the Commission 
must sign the nomination form. A candidate’s statement or resume must be included with 
the nomination. Nominees must be regular LAFCO members (not alternates) and must 
be able to attend at least four meetings a year during 2005 and 2006. Most meetings are 
held in Sacramento, but one meeting each year is at the Annual Conference and 
alternate venues may be chosen. 
 
The CALAFCO Executive Board consists of 15 members (4 each from cities, counties 
and special districts, and 3 from public members). This year there are two city positions, 
three county positions (including Commissioner Long’s position), two district and two 

29



 
 
Nominations to the CALAFCO Executive Board Staff Report 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

public member Board positions available. One of the county Board positions is only for a 
one-year term (to fill the unexpired term of a Commissioner/Supervisor from San Louis 
Obispo County who lost his re-election bid in March 2004). 
 
Commissioner Long is serving as Vice-Chair of CALAFCO and has indicated a desire to 
remain on the Board. For this to occur, the Commission must at least formally nominate 
her. Other nominations are also possible. More than one person from a given LAFCO has 
been elected to the CALAFCO Board in the past. 
 
Copies of the nomination form and the Candidate’s Resume form are attached for 
reference. 

30



Recommendation to the CALAFCO Recruitment Committee 
 
 

In accordance with the Election Procedures of CALAFCo, the _____________________ 
LAFCo nominates _____________________________ for the ___________________ 
position on the CALAFCO Executive Board to be filled by election at the next Annual 
Conference. 

 
 
____________________________________ 

LAFCo Chair 
Date: __________________ 

31



CALAFCO ______ Received by 
Recruitment Committee 

 
Candidate’s Resume 

Recommended by ___________________________________ LAFCo 

Category __________________________________________ 
 (City, County, Public, Special District) 
Date: ___________________ 

Candidate’s Name   
Address   
   
Phone     

Personal Information: 
 
 
 
LAFCo Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CALAFCO Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Availability: 
 
 
Other Activities or Comments: 

32



 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date:  July 21, 2004 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest Code Amendment 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the attached Resolution amending the conflict of interest code. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Government Code requires local government agencies to adopt a conflict 
of interest code. The Government Code also specifies that the Board of Supervisors is 
the code reviewing body for any local government agency with jurisdiction wholly within 
the County. LAFCO is a local government agency as defined by these provisions of the 
government code. The Commission first adopted a conflict of interest code in 1993. It 
was last amended in 2000, after the adoption of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000. The current conflict of interest code is 
contained in Division 1, Chapter 2 of the Commissioner’s Handbook (pages 5 and 6). 
 
The Government Code requires that LAFCO biennially review its conflict of interest code 
in even numbered years to determine if the existing code is current or in need of 
amendment. A written statement stating whether the code is current or transmitting any 
amendments must be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than 
October 1, 2004. 
 
Within the last two years the Commission has approved changes in classification and title 
for what was a Planner position and what is now the LAFCO Analyst position. The 
Conflict of Interest Code should be amended to recognize this change in classification/ 
title. Also within the last two years the Commission has changed the classification and 

33



 
 
Staff Report 
Conflict of Interest Code Amendment 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

title for what was an Administrative Assistant position to a management classification with 
the title of Office Manager/Clerk of the Commission. This change in classification also 
recognized that the Office Manager/Clerk of the Commission positions functions as the 
LAFCO fiscal officer. Because of the change in status for this position, it is recommended 
that it be added to the list of designated positions. 
 
The recommended changes are strictly to ensure that the designated positions in the 
conflict of interest code are current. They do not alter the requirements to file annual 
conflict of interest statements by the Commissioners, nor are any of the disclosure 
categories changed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 

• Amended Conflict of Interest Code in “legislative format” with additions underlined 
and deletions lined through. 

• Resolution Amending the Conflict of Interest Code as recommended. 

34



 

AMENDED CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE  
VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

AS RECOMMENDED JULY 21, 2004 
 

(Additions underlined; Deletions lined through) 
 
The Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission hereby amends its Conflict of 
Interest Code adopted in 1993 and as amended in 2000. The Political Reform Act, 
Government Code section 81000 et seq., requires local government agencies to adopt 
and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes. The Fair Political Practices Commission has 
adopted a regulation (Cal. Code Regs., title 2, § 18730), which contains the terms of a 
standard Conflict of Interest Code (“standard code”), which may be amended by the Fair 
Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act 
after public notice and hearings. 
 
The terms of California Code of Regulations (hereafter “Regulations”), title 2, section 
18730, and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission, are hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Exhibit 
A in which officials and employees are designated and disclosure categories are set 
forth, shall constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Ventura Local Agency 
Formation Commission. 
 
For designated persons who are officials specified in Government Code section 87200 
(e.g., members of the Board of Supervisors or members of city councils), this code does 
not establish additional disclosure obligations within the geographic area already 
encompassed within the territorial jurisdiction of the office held by any such official. (See 
Gov. Code, § 87200 et seq. and Regulations, title 2, § 18730, subd. (b).) With respect to 
areas of jurisdiction of the Commission beyond the foregoing, any such official may 
satisfy his or her filing obligations under this code, when appropriate, by filing an 
expanded statement of economic interest as permitted by Regulations, title 2, section 
18730, footnote 1. 
 
Pursuant to section 4 of the standard code, designated persons shall file statements of 
economic interests with the Executive Officer of the Commission.  Upon receipt of the 
statement of a board member, alternate board member, or executive officer, the 
executive officer shall make and retain a copy and forward the original of the statement 
to the County Clerk. The statements of other designated persons shall be retained as 
part of the Commission’s files. The County Clerk and the Commission shall retain all 
such filings as required by law at the Ventura County Government Center and at the 
Commission’s offices, respectively.  However, to avoid unnecessary duplication of 
filings, where a designated person files another required disclosure statement with an 
office or agency located at the Ventura County Government Center, which filing meets 
or exceeds the individual’s disclosure requirements under this code, then no additional 
filing under this code is required. 
 
 
 

35



 

Exhibit A 
 
VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION AMENDED CONFLICT 

OF INTEREST CODE ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 20, 2000 JULY 21, 2004 
 
Designated Positions 
 
Commissioners and Alternate Commissioners 
 
Executive Officer 
 
Planner III LAFCO Analyst 
 
Legal Counsel 
 
Consultants* 
 
Disclosure Categories 
 
Subject to the definitions set forth in the Political Reform Act and applicable regulations, 
disclosures shall be made in the following categories: 
 
1. All sources of income; 
 
2. Interests in real property; and 
 
3. Investments and business positions in business entities. 
 
 
* The disclosure by consultants is subject to the following limitation: The Executive 
Officer may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although filling a 
designated position, is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and 
thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section. Such 
written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s duties and, based 
upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The 
Executive Officer’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public 
inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. 

36



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION AMENDING THE 

COMMISSION’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 81000 
et seq. requires local government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest 
Codes; and 

WHEREAS, the Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) adopted 
a Conflict of Interest Code in 1993 and made non-substantive amendments in 2000, 
and 
 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 87306 requires Conflict of 
Interest Codes be amended when a change is necessitated by changed circumstances, 
including the creation of new positions; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 87306.5 requires every local 
agency to review its Conflict of Interest Code in even-numbered years and, if a change 
is necessitated by changed circumstances, to submit an amended Conflict of Interest 
Code to the County Board of Supervisors by October 1; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission in January 2004 established new 
classifications for LAFCO Analyst, in place of the prior classification for Planner III, and 
the conflict of interest code should be updated to reflect this change; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED that 

the Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission hereby: 
 

(1) Amends its Conflict of Interest Code as set forth in Attachment A, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

(2) Directs the Executive Officer to file this amended Conflict of Interest Code 
with the Clerk of the Ventura County Board of Supervisors no later than 
October 1, 2004. 

(3) Directs the Executive Officer to compile this amendment in a format to 
replace Division 1 – Operational Rules & Regulations, Chapter 2 – 
Amended Conflict of Interest Code, in the Commissioner’s Handbook and 
distribute the replacement Commissioner’s Handbook pages to interested 
parties.   

 
 
 

37



 
 
This resolution was adopted on July 21, 2004. 
 
 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTAINS:   
 
 
 
Dated:     ___________________________________________ 
     Chair, Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
 

38



 

Attachment A 
 

AMENDED CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE  
VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

 
The Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission hereby amends its Conflict of 
Interest Code adopted in 1993 and as amended in 2000. The Political Reform Act, 
Government Code section 81000 et seq., requires local government agencies to adopt 
and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes. The Fair Political Practices Commission has 
adopted a regulation (Cal. Code Regs., title 2, § 18730), which contains the terms of a 
standard Conflict of Interest Code (“standard code”), which may be amended by the Fair 
Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act 
after public notice and hearings. 
 
The terms of California Code of Regulations (hereafter “Regulations”), title 2, section 
18730, and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission, are hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Exhibit 
A in which officials and employees are designated and disclosure categories are set 
forth, shall constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Ventura Local Agency 
Formation Commission. 
 
For designated persons who are officials specified in Government Code section 87200 
(e.g., members of the Board of Supervisors or members of city councils), this code does 
not establish additional disclosure obligations within the geographic area already 
encompassed within the territorial jurisdiction of the office held by any such official. (See 
Gov. Code, § 87200 et seq. and Regulations, title 2, § 18730, subd. (b).) With respect to 
areas of jurisdiction of the Commission beyond the foregoing, any such official may 
satisfy his or her filing obligations under this code, when appropriate, by filing an 
expanded statement of economic interest as permitted by Regulations, title 2, section 
18730, footnote 1. 
 
Pursuant to section 4 of the standard code, designated persons shall file statements of 
economic interests with the executive officer of the Commission.  Upon receipt of the 
statement of a board member, alternate board member, or executive officer, the 
executive officer shall make and retain a copy and forward the original of the statement 
to the County Clerk. The statements of other designated persons shall be retained as 
part of the Commission’s files. The County Clerk and the Commission shall retain all 
such filings as required by law at the Ventura County Government Center and at the 
Commission’s offices, respectively.  However, to avoid unnecessary duplication of 
filings, where a designated person files another required disclosure statement with an 
office or agency located at the Ventura County Government Center, which filing meets 
or exceeds the individual’s disclosure requirements under this code, then no additional 
filing under this code is required. 
 
 
 

39



Exhibit A 
 
Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission Amended Conflict of Interest Code 

Adopted July 21, 2004 
 
Designated Positions 
 
Commissioners and Alternate Commissioners 
 
Executive Officer 
 
LAFCO Analyst 
 
Legal Counsel 
 
Consultants* 
 
Disclosure Categories 
 
Subject to the definitions set forth in the Political Reform Act and applicable regulations, 
disclosures shall be made in the following categories: 
 
1. All sources of income; 
 
2. Interests in real property; and 
 
3. Investments and business positions in business entities. 
 
 
 
* The disclosure by consultants is subject to the following limitation: The Executive 
Officer may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although filling a 
designated position, is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and 
thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section. Such 
written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s duties and, based 
upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. The 
Executive Officer’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public 
inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. 
 

40



 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Kathy Long   Evaristo Barajas, Chair  Jack Curtis, Vice Chair  Louis Cunningham 
Linda Parks   Don Waunch    Dick Richardson     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  John Zaragoza  Ted Grandsen Kenneth M. Hess 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Hollee Brunsky    Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date:  July 21, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Revisions to Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update 

Work Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the attached revised Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update 
Work Plan. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Commission first adopted a Work Plan for the municipal service review and sphere 
of influence update process in May 2002. While the first Work Plan was based on 
considerable discussion by the Commission about how to implement the mandates of the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, it was 
developed before any service review work had commenced and with the full expectation 
that it would be reviewed periodically and revised as appropriate. In January of 2004, 
after the completion of the water and/or wastewater service reviews, the Work Plan was 
revised and updated in preparation for the start of the second phase of the service review 
and sphere of influence update process. 
 
There has been substantial progress made in the last six months. The municipal service 
review and sphere of influence update process has been fully completed for 25 agencies. 
Because of this progress and to keep the Work Plan current it is recommended that the 
Commission adopt the revised Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update 
Work Plan. 
 

41



 

 
 
Staff Report - Revisions to Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update 
Work Plan 
July 21, 2004 
Page 2 of 2 

The recommended revision maintains and restates the basic principles and the basic 
phasing established by the Commission in 2002. The revisions made since the January 
2004 version of the Work Plan was adopted reflect the Commission’s review and update, 
as necessary, for 22 agencies that were part of the water and/or wastewater service 
reviews conducted in 2003, two Countywide districts where it was determined that no 
sphere of influence updates were necessary, and the 17 special districts to be reviewed 
as part of Phase 2 based on the contract with Joyce Crosthwaite. 
 
The service review and sphere of influence update process remains the major focus of 
staff activities. The Commission will continue to receive periodic reports as progress 
occurs or circumstances change. Further revisions to the Work Plan will also be 
presented as major elements are completed. 

42



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
SE

R
VI

C
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 &
 S

PH
ER

E 
O

F 
IN

FL
U

EN
C

E 
U

PD
A

TE
 W

O
R

K
 P

LA
N

: 
20

02
-2

00
5 

V
en

tu
ra

 L
A

FC
O

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 1

0 

 W
or

k 
P

la
n 

P
rin

ci
pl

es
 

• 
Th

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 th
re

e 
ov

er
la

pp
in

g 
ph

as
es

. 
• 

P
ha

se
 1

 w
ill 

be
 a

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f w
at

er
 a

nd
 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 W

at
er

 (n
on

-a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l) 
an

d 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

co
re

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r u
rb

an
 g

ro
w

th
. O

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
10

 c
iti

es
 a

nd
 

49
 s

pe
ci

al
 d

is
tri

ct
s 

w
ith

 s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s,
 

36
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

om
e 

fo
rm

 o
f w

at
er

 a
nd

/o
r w

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
he

re
 is

 m
or

e 
ov

er
la

p 
in

 th
e 

sp
he

re
s 

of
 

in
flu

en
ce

 o
f w

at
er

 a
nd

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 th

an
 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
ot

he
r c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
• 

P
ha

se
 2

 w
ill 

be
 a

n 
ag

en
cy

-b
y-

ag
en

cy
 re

vi
ew

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, e
xc

ep
t w

at
er

 a
nd

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

al
l s

pe
ci

al
 d

is
tri

ct
s,

 e
xc

ep
t h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e,
 

m
em

or
ia

l a
nd

 h
ar

bo
r/p

or
t d

is
tri

ct
s.

 
• 

P
ha

se
 3

 w
ill 

be
 a

n 
ag

en
cy

-b
y-

ag
en

cy
 re

vi
ew

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, e
xc

ep
t w

at
er

 a
nd

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

al
l c

iti
es

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

ha
rb

or
/p

or
t 

di
st

ric
ts

. 
• 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 in
 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
fro

m
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 a

ge
nc

y 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 n
ew

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

in
im

iz
ed

. T
o 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xt

en
t p

os
si

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 a

ge
nc

ie
s.

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
of

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l u

se
 to

 th
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

• 
Th

e 
fo

cu
s 

of
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
on

 
th

os
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 th
at

 re
la

te
 to

 th
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
  

 of
 L

A
FC

O
, s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 is

su
es

 th
at

 re
la

te
 to

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

an
d 

ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 s

ph
er

e 
of

 
in

flu
en

ce
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s.
 

• 
P

ub
lic

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 s

ph
er

e 
of

 
in

flu
en

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. A

ll 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
ily

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
, a

nd
 e

as
ily

 u
nd

er
st

an
da

bl
e 

by
, t

he
 g

en
er

al
 p

ub
lic

. 
• 

Th
e 

fir
st

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
sh

ou
ld

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ba
se

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

re
ad

ily
 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

us
ed

 fo
r s

ub
se

qu
en

t m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
vi

ew
s.

 
• 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
sp

he
re

 o
f i

nf
lu

en
ce

 
up

da
te

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 L

A
FC

O
. L

A
FC

O
 w

ill 
bu

dg
et

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
ba

si
c 

sp
he

re
 o

f i
nf

lu
en

ce
 u

pd
at

es
 e

ith
er

 b
y 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

or
 s

ta
ff 

or
 s

om
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
an

d 
st

af
f. 

If,
 h

ow
ev

er
, f

ur
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 s

tu
di

es
 a

re
 

w
ar

ra
nt

ed
 o

r i
n-

de
pt

h 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
ie

w
 is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r t

he
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
vi

ew
s 

or
 s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 u
pd

at
es

, L
A

FC
O

 w
ill 

se
ek

 fu
nd

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
ge

nc
y.

 
• 

If,
 u

po
n 

re
vi

ew
, L

A
FC

O
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 o
f 

in
flu

en
ce

 u
pd

at
e 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r a

n 
ag

en
cy

, n
o 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 w
ill 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 fo
r t

ha
t 

ag
en

cy
. S

uc
h 

a 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
fo

r t
he

 
A

hm
an

so
n 

R
an

ch
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tri

ct
. W

hi
le

 
fo

rm
ed

 th
is

 D
is

tri
ct

 is
 n

ot
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l, 
ha

s 
no

 re
ve

nu
es

 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
ss

ol
ve

d.
 

• 
Th

is
 W

or
k 

P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pe
rio

di
ca

lly
 re

vi
se

d 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

m
ad

e 
by

 L
A

FC
O

.

43



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 1

 –
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 1

0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

M
SR

 S
ta

tu
s 

Sp
he

re
 

U
pd

at
e 

St
at

us
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

C
al

le
gu

as
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
U

pd
at

ed
 

5-
19

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

C
am

ar
illo

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
U

pd
at

ed
 

5-
19

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

C
am

ro
sa

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
5-

19
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

  
C

as
ita

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
1st

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

: 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s;

 N
o 

sp
he

re
 is

su
es

 

C
ha

nn
el

 Is
la

nd
s 

B
ea

ch
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tri
ct

 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
1st

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
: 

S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s;
 S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e:
 A

re
as

 in
 C

ha
nn

el
 Is

la
nd

s 
H

ar
bo

r; 
po

ss
ib

le
 z

er
o 

sp
he

re
 

C
ity

 o
f C

am
ar

ill
o 

W
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

S
ep

t. 
20

03
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 a
nd

 S
tre

et
 

&
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 S
ph

er
e 

an
al

ys
is

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e:

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 o

ut
si

de
 s

ph
er

e;
 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s 
w

ith
 S

O
A

R
 

C
ity

 o
f F

ill
m

or
e 

W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 F
ire

, P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 a

nd
 S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 D
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 

w
ith

 S
O

A
R

 

C
ity

 o
f O

xn
ar

d 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 F
ire

, P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 &

 S
tre

et
 a

nd
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 D
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 

w
ith

 S
O

A
R

 

44



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 1

 –
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 1

0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

M
SR

 S
ta

tu
s 

Sp
he

re
 

U
pd

at
e 

St
at

us
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

C
ity

 o
f P

or
t H

ue
ne

m
e 

W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

3-
24

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
; D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

nd
 n

o 
fu

rth
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 B

ue
na

ve
nt

ur
a 

W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 F
ire

, P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 a

nd
 S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 

ou
ts

id
e 

sp
he

re
 &

 d
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 w

ith
 

S
O

A
R

 &
 H

V
P

A
 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 P
au

la
 

W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 F
ire

, P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 a

nd
 S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s;

 
S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 D
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 

w
ith

 S
O

A
R

. 

C
ity

 o
f S

im
i V

al
le

y 
W

as
te

w
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

S
ep

t. 
20

03
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 a
nd

 S
tre

et
 

&
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s;

 S
ph

er
e 

an
al

ys
is

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e:

 D
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 w

ith
 S

O
A

R
 

C
ity

 o
f T

ho
us

an
d 

O
ak

s 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

S
ep

t. 
20

03
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y:

 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 a
nd

 S
tre

et
 

&
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s;

 N
o 

sp
he

re
 is

su
es

 
Fo

x 
C

an
yo

n 
G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

U
pd

at
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

H
id

de
n 

V
al

le
y 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(n
o 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
cu

rre
nt

ly
, b

ut
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

W
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

S
ep

t. 
20

03
 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

45



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 1

 –
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 1

0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

M
SR

 S
ta

tu
s 

Sp
he

re
 

U
pd

at
e 

St
at

us
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

La
ke

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

M
ei

ne
rs

 O
ak

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
U

pd
at

ed
 

2-
15

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

M
on

ta
lv

o 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
U

pd
at

ed
 

5-
19

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

O
ce

an
 V

ie
w

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
O

ja
i B

as
in

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
) 

C
om

pe
te

d 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

O
ja

i V
al

le
y 

S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
3r

d 
qu

ar
te

r 
20

04
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

ph
er

e 
is

su
es

; s
ph

er
e 

an
al

ys
is

 to
 in

cl
ud

e:
  A

re
as

 in
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s,
 

bu
t o

ut
si

de
 s

ph
er

e 
&

 a
re

as
 o

ut
si

de
 

sp
he

re
 a

nd
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

O
ja

i W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

P
le

as
an

t V
al

le
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
U

pd
at

ed
 

5-
19

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

S
at

ic
oy

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 

Tr
iu

nf
o 

S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
3rd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 

S
ph

er
e 

an
al

ys
is

 to
 in

cl
ud

e:
 D

is
cr

ep
an

ci
es

 
be

tw
ee

n 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

an
d 

sp
he

re
; p

os
si

bl
e 

ze
ro

 s
ph

er
e 

U
ni

te
d 

W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
W

at
er

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

1st
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
: 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s;
 N

o 
sp

he
re

 is
su

es
 

46



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 1

 –
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 1

0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

M
SR

 S
ta

tu
s 

Sp
he

re
 

U
pd

at
e 

St
at

us
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 2

9 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o 

30
 

A
ll 

(W
as

te
w

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

2 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

w
or

ks
 

D
is

tri
ct

 N
o.

 1
 

A
ll 

(W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

; s
ph

er
e 

of
 in

flu
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
ed

, n
o 

up
da

te
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 8

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
3rd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 

S
ph

er
e 

an
al

ys
is

 to
 in

cl
ud

e:
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

to
 C

ity
 o

f S
im

i V
al

le
y 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
&

 S
oa

r; 
fu

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

as
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

6 
A

ll 
(W

as
te

w
at

er
) 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

D
ec

. 2
00

3 
U

pd
at

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

7 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
20

04
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; s

ph
er

e 
of

 in
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

9 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
U

pd
at

ed
 

2-
18

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

V
en

tu
ra

 R
eg

io
na

l S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

ep
t. 

20
03

 
1st

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
: 

S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s;
 S

ph
er

e 
an

al
ys

is
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e:
 A

re
as

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

ity
 o

f M
oo

rp
ar

k 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f S
im

i V
al

le
y 

 
V

en
tu

ra
 R

iv
er

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(W

at
er

) 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  
D

ec
. 2

00
3 

U
pd

at
ed

 
2-

18
-0

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

 

47



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

P
ha

se
 2

 –
 A

ge
nc

y 
B

y 
A

ge
nc

y 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

sp
he

re
 o

f i
nf

lu
en

ce
 u

pd
at

es
 fo

r a
ll 

di
st

ric
ts

 
(e

xc
ep

t h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e,

 m
em

or
ia

l, 
ha

rb
or

/p
or

t &
 re

so
ur

ce
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

di
st

ric
ts

) 
20

02
-2

00
5 

 V
en

tu
ra

 L
A

FC
O

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 &
 S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 U
pd

at
e 

W
or

k 
P

la
n 

20
02

-2
00

5 
U

pd
at

ed
 &

 R
ev

is
ed

 J
ul

y 
20

04
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ag
e 

6 
of

 1
0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

St
ar

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 S

O
I 

U
pd

at
e 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

B
ar

ds
da

le
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(C

em
et

er
y)

 
2nd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 E
l R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i a

nd
 

P
iru

 P
ub

lic
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

s 
B

el
l C

an
yo

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(F

ire
, P

ol
ic

e,
 S

ol
id

 
W

as
te

) 
2nd

 t  q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
S

ep
ar

at
e 

re
vi

ew
; a

 u
ni

qu
e 

di
st

ric
t 

C
as

ita
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

2nd
 t  q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
ha

nn
el

 Is
la

nd
s 

B
ea

ch
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tri
ct

 
S

ol
id

 W
as

te
 

2nd
 t  q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
on

ej
o 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

k 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(H
ea

lth
, P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n)

 
2nd

 t  q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 

C
om

bi
ne

 w
/ P

le
as

an
t V

al
le

y 
an

d 
R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

ar
k 

D
is

tri
ct

s 
an

d 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o.

 3
3 

E
l R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(C

em
et

er
y)

 
2nd

  q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 B
ar

ds
da

le
 a

nd
 P

iru
 

P
ub

lic
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

s 

O
xn

ar
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

 
A

ll 
(D

ra
in

ag
e)

 
2nd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 O
xn

ar
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 2

 

O
xn

ar
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 2

 
A

ll 
(D

ra
in

ag
e)

 
2nd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 O
xn

ar
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

 

P
iru

 P
ub

lic
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(C

em
et

er
y)

 
2nd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 B
ar

ds
da

le
 a

nd
 E

l 
R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

s 

P
le

as
an

t V
al

le
y 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

k 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n)

 
2nd

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 

C
om

bi
ne

 re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 C

on
ej

o 
an

d 
R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

ar
k 

D
is

tri
ct

s 
an

d 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o.

 3
3 

R
an

ch
o 

S
im

i R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

k 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(P
ol

ic
e,

 R
ec

re
at

io
n)

 
2nd

  q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 

C
om

bi
ne

 w
ith

 C
on

ej
o 

an
d 

P
le

as
an

t 
V

al
le

y 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

ar
k 

D
is

tri
ct

s 
an

d 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o.

 3
3 

48



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

P
ha

se
 2

 –
 A

ge
nc

y 
B

y 
A

ge
nc

y 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

sp
he

re
 o

f i
nf

lu
en

ce
 u

pd
at

es
 fo

r a
ll 

di
st

ric
ts

 
(e

xc
ep

t h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e,

 m
em

or
ia

l, 
ha

rb
or

/p
or

t &
 re

so
ur

ce
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

di
st

ric
ts

) 
20

02
-2

00
5 

 V
en

tu
ra

 L
A

FC
O

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 &
 S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 U
pd

at
e 

W
or

k 
P

la
n 

20
02

-2
00

5 
U

pd
at

ed
 &

 R
ev

is
ed

 J
ul

y 
20

04
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ag
e 

7 
of

 1
0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

St
ar

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 S

O
I 

U
pd

at
e 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

U
ni

te
d 

W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
2nd

 t  q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
In

cl
ud

e 
pr

io
r W

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

ns
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(F

ire
) 

N
A

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 
3-

24
-0

4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
; D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

nd
 n

o 
fu

rth
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(D

ra
in

ag
e)

 
N

A
 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

3-
24

-0
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
; S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 
re

vi
ew

ed
; D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

nd
 n

o 
fu

rth
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

 
A

ll 
(S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
) 

1st
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

C
om

bi
ne

 re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
as

 N
o.

 4
 a

nd
 N

o.
 1

4 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o.

 4
 

A
ll 

(P
ol

ic
e,

 S
tre

et
 &

 
H

ig
hw

ay
) 

1st
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

C
om

bi
ne

 re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
as

 N
o.

 3
 a

nd
 N

o.
 1

4 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

N
o.

 1
4 

A
ll 

(S
tre

et
 &

 H
ig

hw
ay

) 
1st

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
C

om
bi

ne
 re

vi
ew

 w
ith

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

as
 N

o.
 3

 a
nd

 N
o.

 4
 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

3 
A

ll 
(P

ol
ic

e,
 R

ec
re

at
io

n)
 

1st
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

C
om

bi
ne

 re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 C

on
ej

o,
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y 

an
d 

R
an

ch
o 

S
im

i R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

k 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

V
en

tu
ra

 R
eg

io
na

l S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

S
ol

id
 W

as
te

  
1st

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
In

cl
ud

e 
pr

io
r W

at
er

 a
nd

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 

49



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

P
ha

se
 3

 –
 A

ge
nc

y 
by

 A
ge

nc
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
sp

he
re

 o
f i

nf
lu

en
ce

 u
pd

at
es

 
fo

r m
os

t c
iti

es
, a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e,
 m

em
or

ia
l, 

ha
rb

or
/p

or
t &

 re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
di

st
ric

ts
 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 1

0 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

St
ar

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 S

O
I 

U
pd

at
e 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

C
am

ar
illo

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(H

ea
lth

) 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 
S

ep
ar

at
e 

re
vi

ew
; a

 u
ni

qu
e 

di
st

ric
t 

C
ity

 o
f C

am
ar

illo
 

D
ra

in
ag

e,
 P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
an

d 
S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 

C
ity

 o
f M

oo
rp

ar
k 

D
ra

in
ag

e,
 P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
an

d 
S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
re

vi
ew

, n
o 

pr
io

r s
er

vi
ce

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 

C
ity

 o
f O

ja
i 

C
em

et
er

y,
 D

ra
in

ag
e,

 
P

ol
ic

e,
 R

ec
re

at
io

n,
 S

ol
id

 
W

as
te

 a
nd

 S
tre

et
 &

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
re

vi
ew

, n
o 

pr
io

r s
er

vi
ce

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 

C
ity

 o
f O

xn
ar

d 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 F
ire

, P
ol

ic
e,

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n,
 S

ol
id

 W
as

te
 

an
d 

S
tre

et
 &

 H
ig

hw
ay

 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
ity

 o
f P

or
t H

ue
ne

m
e 

D
ra

in
ag

e,
 P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
an

d 
S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

3-
24

-0
4 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 B

ue
na

ve
nt

ur
a 

D
ra

in
ag

e,
 F

ire
, P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
an

d 
S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
. P

os
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 c
om

bi
ni

ng
 p

or
tio

ns
 w

ith
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 
C

ity
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

50



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

P
ha

se
 3

 –
 A

ge
nc

y 
by

 A
ge

nc
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
sp

he
re

 o
f i

nf
lu

en
ce

 u
pd

at
es

 
fo

r m
os

t c
iti

es
, a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e,
 m

em
or

ia
l, 

ha
rb

or
/p

or
t &

 re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
di

st
ric

ts
 

20
02

-2
00

5 
 V

en
tu

ra
 L

A
FC

O
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 U

pd
at

e 
W

or
k 

P
la

n 
20

02
-2

00
5 

U
pd

at
ed

 &
 R

ev
is

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
04

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
9 

of
 1

0 

 

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

St
ar

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 S

O
I 

U
pd

at
e 

(o
n/

be
fo

re
) 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 P
au

la
 

D
ra

in
ag

e,
 F

ire
, P

ol
ic

e,
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
an

d 
S

tre
et

 &
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
ity

 o
f S

im
i V

al
le

y 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 S
ol

id
 

W
as

te
 a

nd
 S

tre
et

 &
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

C
ity

 o
f T

ho
us

an
d 

O
ak

s 
D

ra
in

ag
e,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n,
 S

ol
id

 W
as

te
 

an
d 

S
tre

et
 &

 H
ig

hw
ay

 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

In
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

r W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 

Fi
llm

or
e-

P
iru

 M
em

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(V

et
er

an
 M

em
or

ia
l H

al
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

02
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

03
 

Lo
gi

ca
l t

o 
co

m
bi

ne
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f F

illm
or

e 

O
xn

ar
d 

H
ar

bo
r D

is
tri

ct
 

A
ll 

(H
ar

bo
r a

nd
 P

or
t) 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

Li
m

ite
d 

or
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 is
su

es
; P

os
si

bl
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 u
pd

at
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d 
no

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
s 

ar
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 

V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(S

oi
l &

 w
at

er
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n)

 
4t

h 
qu

ar
te

r 
20

04
 

4th
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

05
 

Li
m

ite
d 

or
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 is
su

es
; P

os
si

bl
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
th

at
 n

o 
sp

he
re

 u
pd

at
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d 
no

 fu
rth

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

V
en

tu
ra

 P
or

t D
is

tri
ct

 
A

ll 
(H

ar
bo

r a
nd

 P
or

t) 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
04

 
4th

 q
ua

rte
r 

20
05

 
S

ep
ar

at
e 

re
vi

ew
. 

 

51



VE
N

TU
R

A
 L

A
FC

O
 

C
O

M
P

LE
TI

O
N

 S
TA

TU
S

 F
O

R
 M

U
IN

IC
IP

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

 &
 S

P
H

E
R

E
 O

F 
IN

FL
U

E
N

C
E

 U
P

D
A

TE
S

 
 

V
en

tu
ra

 L
A

FC
O

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 &
 S

ph
er

e 
of

 In
flu

en
ce

 U
pd

at
e 

W
or

k 
P

la
n 

20
02

-2
00

5 
U

pd
at

ed
 &

 R
ev

is
ed

 J
ul

y 
20

04
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ag
e 

10
 o

f 1
0 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
00

4 
1.

 
A

hm
an

so
n 

R
an

ch
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tri

ct
**

 
2.

 
C

al
le

gu
as

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 
3.

 
C

am
ar

ill
o 

S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
4.

 
C

am
ro

sa
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 
5.

 
C

ity
 o

f P
or

t H
ue

ne
m

e*
* 

6.
 

Fo
x 

C
an

yo
n 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
7.

 
H

id
de

n 
V

al
le

y 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

8.
 

La
ke

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tri

ct
 

9.
 

M
ei

ne
rs

 O
ak

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 
10

. M
on

ta
lv

o 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

is
tri

ct
 

11
. O

ce
an

 V
ie

w
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

12
. O

ja
i B

as
in

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
13

. O
ja

i W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
14

. P
le

as
an

t V
al

le
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 

15
. S

at
ic

oy
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

16
. V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
**

 
17

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 2

9 
18

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o 
30

 
19

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

2 
20

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
**

 
21

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 D
is

tri
ct

 N
o.

 1
 

22
. V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

w
or

ks
 D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

6 
23

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 D
is

tri
ct

 N
o.

 1
7 

24
. V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

w
or

ks
 D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

9 
25

. V
en

tu
ra

 R
iv

er
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 
 St

ar
te

d 
in

 2
00

3 
– 

To
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

00
4 

1.
 O

ja
i V

al
le

y 
S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

2.
 T

riu
nf

o 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
3.

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
w

or
ks

 D
is

tri
ct

 N
o.

 8
 

 St
ar

te
d 

in
 2

nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

00
4 

1.
 

B
ar

ds
da

le
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 
2.

 
B

el
l C

an
yo

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tri

ct
 

3.
 

C
as

ita
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 (r
ec

re
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
4.

 
C

ha
nn

el
 Is

la
nd

s 
B

ea
ch

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tri
ct

 (s
ol

id
 

w
as

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 
5.

 
C

on
ej

o 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

ar
k 

D
is

tri
ct

 
6.

 
E

l R
an

ch
o 

S
im

i C
em

et
er

y 
D

is
tri

ct
 

7.
 

O
xn

ar
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
 1

 
8.

 
O

xn
ar

d 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 N
o.

 2
 

9.
 

P
iru

 P
ub

lic
 C

em
et

er
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 
10

. P
le

as
an

t V
al

le
y 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

k 
D

is
tri

ct
 

11
. R

an
ch

o 
S

im
i R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

ar
k 

D
is

tri
ct

 
12

. U
ni

te
d 

W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 (r
ec

re
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
13

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

 
14

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 4

 
15

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 1

4 
16

. V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
N

o.
 3

3 
17

. V
en

tu
ra

 R
eg

io
na

l S
an

ita
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (s

ol
id

 w
as

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

To
 s

ta
rt

 in
 4

th
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

00
4 

1.
 

C
am

ar
ill

o 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

2.
 

C
ity

 o
f C

am
ar

ill
o 

3.
 

C
ity

 o
f F

ill
m

or
e 

4.
 

C
ity

 o
f M

oo
rp

ar
k 

5.
 

C
ity

 o
f O

ja
i 

6.
 

C
ity

 o
f O

xn
ar

d 
7.

 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

 B
ue

na
ve

nt
ur

a 
8.

 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 P

au
la

 
9.

 
C

ity
 o

f S
im

i V
al

le
y 

10
. C

ity
 o

f T
ho

us
an

d 
O

ak
s 

11
. F

ill
m

or
e-

P
iru

 M
em

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 
12

. O
xn

ar
d 

H
ar

bo
r D

is
tri

ct
 

13
. V

en
tu

ra
 P

or
t D

is
tri

ct
 

14
. V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

---
--

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
--

--
--

---
--

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
--

--
--

---
--

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
--

--
--

---
--

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
--

--
--

---
--

---
---

---
--

--
---

---
--

--
--

---
--

---
-- 

**
 

S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 re

vi
ew

ed
; n

o 
up

da
te

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
; n

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
or

 n
o 

fu
rth

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 

52



 
 

 
County Government Center • Hall of Administration • 800 S. Victoria Avenue, • Ventura, CA  93009-1850 

Tel (805) 654-2576 • Fax (805) 477-7101 
http://www.ventura.lafco.ca.gov 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   July 12, 2004 
  

TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Commissioner Term Expirations – INFORMATION ONLY 
 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide background information about the selection 
process to replace members whose terms are expiring, and for action by the 
Commission in September relating to the public member and public member alternate 
recruitment process. 
 
Government Code Section 56334 provides, “The term of office of each member shall be 
four years and until the appointment and qualification of his or her successor.” The four 
year term is regardless of who serves. This means that some members/alternates have 
been appointed to fill the unexpired term of prior members who did not complete their 
full four year term. The Commission’s By-laws provide that the expiration date of a term 
is January 1 (Commissioner’s Handbook Section 1.1.3.2). 
 
On January 1, 2005, the terms of the following Commission members expire: 
 
Member Category 
Jack Curtis Special District Member 
Ted Grandsen Special District Member Alternate 
Lou Cunningham Public Member 
Ken Hess Public Member Alternate 
 
 
Special District Members & Alternates 
Special district members and alternates are selected by the Independent Special District 
Selection Committee. This Committee is composed of the Board Chair, or other 
designated Board representative, of each of the 29 independent special districts in the 
County. The Committee has established its own rules and procedures for selecting 
members to LAFCO. A key provision of these rules and procedures is that whenever 
there is a vacancy for a special district member, the special district member alternate 
will automatically be appointed to fill the vacancy. This means that on January 1, 2005, 
special district member alternate Grandsen will automatically become the special district 

53



 
 
Memorandum to LAFCO Commissioners 
Commissioner Term Expirations – INFORMATION ONLY 
July 12, 2004 
Page 2 of 3 

member and there will continue to be a vacancy for the special district member 
alternate. 
 
State law provides for the Executive Officer to convene a meeting of the Independent 
Special District Selection Committee for the purpose of selecting special district 
members and alternates. Alternatively, the law allows the Executive Officer to seek 
nominations and conduct a mailed ballot election. Due to an inability to attain a quorum 
for a meeting of the Independent Special District Selection Committee, a mailed ballot 
election has been used in the past. 
 
The Independent Special District Selection Committee has proposed changes to its 
rules and procedures relating to LAFCO membership. These changes, now being 
reviewed and acted upon by the independent special districts, provide for mailed ballot 
elections to always occur and specify that everything from the nomination process 
through the election itself be conducted by certified mail. These are, I believe, positive 
changes that will clarify the election process for the districts. It will soon be known 
whether or not a majority of the independent special districts approve these changes to 
their rules and procedures. 
 
Based on State law provisions and the latest rules and procedures of the Independent 
Special District Selection Committee I will be starting the process for the selection of a 
new special district member alternate by August 1. I expect that this will be done by 
mail. The first step will be a call for nominations to the 29 independent special districts. 
There is no formal role for the Commission in this process, but I will keep the 
Commission informed of my activities and the selection process. 
 
 
Public Member & Alternate 
The LAFCO public member and public member alternate are directly selected by the 
other six regular members of the Commission. The Commission’s By-laws provide: 
 

“The public member and alternate public member shall not hold 
two consecutive terms as the public member or the alternate 
public member. The intent is to rotate the public membership of 
the Ventura LAFCO on a reasonable basis to broadly allow 
qualified members of the community to serve.” (Commissioner’s 
Handbook Section 1.1.3.3) 

 
In the past, the Commission has appointed a three member sub-committee to oversee 
the public member and public member alternate selection process. In brief, the prior 
selection process consisted of publishing display notices of the vacancies and indicating 
how and when to apply in Countywide newspapers, a review of the applications/letters 

54



 
 
Memorandum to LAFCO Commissioners 
Commissioner Term Expirations – INFORMATION ONLY 
July 12, 2004 
Page 3 of 3 

of interest/resumes received, interviews with the top candidates, and a recommendation 
to the full Commission concerning appointments. 
 
In September, as a formal action agenda item, the Commission will be asked to start the 
process for the selection of a public member and public member alternate. The process 
used in the past has functioned well and will again be recommended, however, this will 
be a matter for the Commission to determine in September. 

55



 

56



 
 

 
County Government Center • Hall of Administration • 800 S. Victoria Avenue, • Ventura, CA  93009-1850 

Tel (805) 654-2575 • Fax (805) 477-7101 
http://www.ventura.lafco.ca.gov 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   July 21, 2004 
  

TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: CALAFCO Awards 2004 
 
 
Enclosed is information calling for nominations for CALAFCO awards. Nominations may 
be submitted by Commissioners, staff and/or the public. No action by the Commission is 
necessary. 
 
If any Commissioner desires to submit a nomination for a CALAFCO Award in one or 
more categories, please complete the nomination form and give it to Debbie or me or 
send it directly to: 
 
Carole Cooper 
Sonoma LAFCo 
575 Administration Drive, Room 104 A 
Santa Rosa, CA  95403 
 
 
Note that all nominations must be received by August 26, 2004. Please let me know if 
you would like staff assistance. 

57



2004 CALAFCO 
ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS 

 

CALL FOR NOMINATIONS 
 
 
 
 
Date:   July 8, 2004 
To:  Local Agency Formation Commissions 
  Commissioners and Staff 
From: Carole Cooper, Awards Committee Staff Person 
 
Each year at the Annual Conference, CALAFCO announces awards that recognize 
outstanding achievements by people in the LAFCO world.  I invite you to use this 
opportunity to nominate as many people and agencies that you feel deserve 
recognition this year.  Please use a separate form for each nomination. 
 
Also, feel free to submit a copy of any supporting information (reports, newspaper 
clippings, etc.) that would assist the Selection Committee in evaluating your 
nomination.  Nominations must be received no later than Thursday, August 26, 
2004.  Please send all nomination material to: 
 

Carole Cooper 
Sonoma LAFCo 
575 Administration Drive, Room 104A 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
Phone  (707) 565-2577      Fax  (707) 565-3778 

 E-mail:  ccooper@sonoma-county.org 
 
 

* * * * 

58



 
2004 CALAFCO AWARDS 

NOMINATION FORM 
 
Nomination Submitted by  
 

Name        
 
Address        
 
Phone Number        
 
Email        

 
Category (see attachment for list):        
 
Person or Agency Being Nominated:        
 
Reasons Why This Person or Agency Deserves to Be Recognized:       
 
__________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________ 
(Use additional sheet if needed) 

59



2004 CALAFCO ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS 
 

 
CALAFCO will recognize excellence within the LAFCO community by presenting the 2004 
Achievement Awards at the Annual Conference in Anaheim. 
 
Nominations are being accepted until August 26th in the following categories: 
 
 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Recognizes a CALAFCO Board member or staff 
person who has provided exemplary service during 
their tenure. 

 
 
Distinguished Service Award Given to a member of the LAFCO community to 

recognize long-term service by an individual. 
 

 
Most Effective Commission Award Presented to an individual Commission to 

recognize innovation, streamlining, and/or initiative 
in implementing LAFCO programs; may also be 
presented to multiple Commissions for joint efforts. 

 
 
Outstanding Commissioner Award Presented to an individual Commissioner for 

extraordinary service to his or her Commission. 
 
 
Outstanding LAFCO Professional Recognizes an Executive Officer, Staff Analyst, 
Award or Legal Counsel for exemplary service during the 

past year. 

 
Outstanding LAFCO Clerk Award Presented to a LAFCo Clerk for service above and 

beyond the call of duty. 

 
Project of the Year Award Recognition for a project-specific program that 

involved complex staff analysis, community 
involvement, or an outstanding solution. 

 
 
Government Leadership Award Presented to a decision-making body at the city, 

county, special district, regional or state level which 
has furthered good government efforts in California. 

 
 
Legislator Award Presented to a state legislator who, over the past year, 

has provided leadership and valued contributions in 
support of LAFCo goals.  Nominees for this award are 
selected by the CALAFCO Board of Directors. 

60




